
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Fairbanks

AGENDA June 15, 2016

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Fairbanks

Presentation Budget Presentation

Minutes Recessed Meeting - May 25, 2016

Minutes Agenda Session - May 25, 2016

Minutes Regular Meeting - June 1, 2016

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon June 13, 2016

Report Sheriff's Annual Report for 2016

Res. No. 616-13 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, and the oath of Deputy Register.

Res. No. 616-14 A Resolution making an appropriation to Alton Park Development Corporation in the amount of
seven thousand six hundred thirty dollars ($7,630.00) from General Fund discretionary monies,
as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 616-15 A Resolution making an appropriation to Alton Park Development Corporation in the amount of
seventeen thousand three hundred seventy dollars ($17,370.00) from General Fund
discretionary monies, as allotted to District Nine.

Res. No. 616-16 A Resolution approving the expenditure of up to two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00)
from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District Five, to purchase a security system for
Dalewood Middle School.

Res. No. 616-17 A Resolution approving the expenditure of up to seven thousand four hundred thirty six dollars
($7,436.00) from discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Five) to assist with the purchase
of library books for Hillcrest Elementary School.

Res. No. 616-18 A Resolution to amend the Schools Federal Projects Fund budget by adding $70,842 to the FY
2015-2016 revenue and expenditure budget; to amend the Self-funded Projects Fund budget by
adding $490,451 to the FY 2015-2016 revenue and expenditure budget; to amend the General
Purpose Fund budget by adding $1,956,793 to the FY 2015-2016 revenue and expenditure
budget.

Res. No. 616-19 A Resolution accepting the bid of Windrock Enterprises, Inc. for  small kitchen items and
equipment for the Middle Valley Elementary School for the Board of Education and authorizing
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-20 A Resolution accepting the proposal of Sun Life Financial for reinsurance for the County’s group
medical plan and authorizing the County Mayor to  sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-21 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign an agreement in the amount of $50,000 with
the Urban League of  Greater Chattanooga to provide certain contract compliance services for a
contract period beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.

Res. No. 616-22 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a grant  agreement with a term of July 1,
2016 ending June 30, 2017 with the Tennessee Department of Mental Health and Substance
Abuse and amending the Recovery Court fund by adding $425,000 to the revenue and
expenditure budgets.

Res. No. 616-23 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with a term of July 1, 2016 to
June 30, 2017 with Ms. Elaine Kelly to serve as Coordinator of the Hamilton County Recovery
Court Program.



Res. No. 616-24 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with a term of July 1, 2016 to
June 30, 2017 with Mr. John Cooper as a Case Manager of the Hamilton County Recovery
Court Program.

Res. No. 616-25 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with a term of July 1, 2016 to
June 30, 2017 with Mr. Jeff Hill as a Case Manager of the Hamilton County Recovery Court
Program.

Res. No. 616-26 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to accept a $1.25 million Fast Track Economic
Development Fund grant from the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community
Development and to sign any and all grant-related documents on behalf of Yanfeng USA
Automotive Trim Systems, Inc. to provide various building improvements and equipment at the
company’s new Hamilton County location.

Res. No. 616-27 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to accept a $5.5 million Fast Track Economic
Development Fund grant from the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community
Development and to sign any and all grant-related documents on behalf of Gestamp
Chattanooga LLC to assist with equipment and building improvements to support the expansion
of the company’s Hamilton County operations.

Res. No. 616-28 A Resolution adopting a budget for the Fiscal Year 2016–2017 and setting the tax levy for the
year 2016 for Hamilton County, Tennessee.
Resolution postponed to 6-29-16 Recessed Meeting.

Res. No. 616-29 A Resolution making appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations of Hamilton
County, Tennessee, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.
Resolution postponed to 6-29-16 Recessed Meeting.

Res. No. 616-30 A Resolution to Rezone From A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single-Family Residential District,
property located at 8908 Fuller Road.

Res. No. 616-31 A Resolution to Rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to R-3 Multi-family Residential
District, properties located at 5400, 5406 and 5412 Champion Road.

Res. No. 616-32 A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District & R-2 Urban Residential District to R-1
Single-family Residential District, property located at 2333 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road.

Res. No. 616-33 A Resolution Granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development
of property at 9125 Snow Hill Road.

Res. No. 616-34 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a continuation contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of
$677,130.00 to provide a School Based Dental Sealant Program in Hamilton County for the time
period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018.

Res. No. 616-35 A Resolution accepting the bid of Baker Waste Equipment for contract unit pricing for Stationary
Compactors, beginning June 15, 2016 through June 14, 2017, for the Recycling / Support
Services Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-36 A Resolution accepting the bid of Talley Construction Company, Inc. for one (1) year contract
pricing, with the option to renew for three (3) additional one-year terms, beginning June 15, 2016
through June 14, 2017, for asphalt milling services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-37 A Resolution accepting the qualifications and fee schedules of Santec Consulting Services, Inc.,
Arcadis U.S., Inc., S&ME, Inc., Thompson Engineering, Inc., Terracon Consultants, Inc.,
GEOServices, LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., and MC
Squared, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning July 3, 2016 through July 2, 2017, for
Geoenvironmental Consulting Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-38 A Resolution accepting the unit price bids of Thomas Consultants, Inc. and Central
Technologies, Inc. for HP (Aruba) Wireless Access Points for the period beginning June 16,
2016 through June 15, 2017 for the Telecommunications Department and to authorize the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 616-39 A Resolution approving the purchase of Avaya Partner Assurance Support Services (PASS),
beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, amounting to $27,979.00 from Avaya for the
Telecommunications Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-40 A Resolution approving the purchase of equipment for two (2) Internet Gateway Routers
amounting to $34,584.24 from Pomeroy IT Solutions, Inc. from the State Contract for the
Information Technology Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-41 A Resolution accepting the proposal of A+ Technical Services for disposal of surplus computer /
other electronic equipment for Hamilton County and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any
contract necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-42 A Resolution approving the purchase of hardware/software and installation for PBX telephone
equipment upgrades amounting to $19,249.00 from Communications Resources, Inc. (CRI) for
the Telecommunications Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-43 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract in the amount of $60,000 with the
City of Chattanooga for the Hamilton County Courts Community Service Program with a term
beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 25, 2016 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 25, 2016 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of May, 2016, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Mike Compton Chief of Staff to Mayor Coppinger was present.  Also in 

attendance were members of the Mayor’s administrative staff along with County 

Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Smedley introduced Elder Forrest Vandergriff, Chattanooga 

Church of God Seventh Day, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Fairbanks led in 

the pledge to the flag. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 25, 2016 
 

2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-13B A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENTERING INTO A 

LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 

EDUCATION AND TOWER ASSETS NEWCO IX, LLC, OF CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY OWNED BY THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR 

THE ERECTION OF A CELL TOWER, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

SAID LEASE. 

 
 

Chairman Bankston recommended that Commissioner Boyd withdraw his motion 

to adopt Resolution No. 516-13, and Commissioner Graham withdraw his second, from 

the May 4th, 2016 Regular Meeting. Both Commissioners withdrew their motion and 

second.  

 

Chairman Bankston also recommended that Commissioner Boyd withdraw his 

motion to amend Resolution No. 516-13, and Commissioner Mackey withdraw his 

second, from the May 4th, 2016 Regular Meeting. Both Commissioners withdrew their 

motion and second. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-13B. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 25, 2016 

3 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-47 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TRANSFERRING OF 

$5,000.00 IN DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO COUNTY 

COMMISSION DISTRICT FIVE TO COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT EIGHT, AND 

THE TRANSFERRING OF A LIKE AMOUNT IN GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

TRAVEL FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT EIGHT TO 

COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT FIVE. 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to adopt 

Resolution No. 516-47. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced he was present. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 25, 2016 
 

4 
 

 
 

Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

      

     Respectfully submitted: 

 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 25, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 25th day of May, 2016, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Mike Compton Chief of Staff to Mayor Coppinger was present.  Also in 

attendance were members of the Mayor’s administrative staff along with County 

Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• The Trustee’s Excess Fee and Monthly Reports for April 2016 would be 
submitted for the record. 

• A Report confirming the appointment of Chris Mabee to the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission would be submitted for the 
record. 

• Resolution No. 616-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolution Nos. 616-6 through 616-9 were assigned to the Finance Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

• Resolution Nos. 616-10 through 616-12 was assigned to the Roads Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

• Resolution Nos. 616-2 through 616-5 were heard by a Committee of the Whole. 
 

 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 616-2 through 616-4 would now 

be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 616-2 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which appoints Joe Degaetano to 

the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health Council for a four-year term 

beginning June 1, 2016 and ending June 1, 2020. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 3 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 616-3 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which confirms the reappointment 

of County Commissioner Jim Fields, County Clerk William “Bill” Knowles, County 

Finance Administrator Al Kiser, County Attorney Rheubin M. Taylor and County Auditor 

Bill McGriff, as members to the Hamilton County Ethics Committee for terms of two 

years. 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 616-4 

  

 Commissioner Smedley spoke regarding this item, which appropriates 

$10,000.00 in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district seven, to Tri-

Community Volunteer Fire Department. It was noted the funds will be used to assist with 

the purchase of a heating and air unit. The remaining monies needed to fund the 

purchase will be raised by the Fire Department. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 4 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 616-5 

  

 Bill Stoll, Hamilton County Risk Management Manager spoke regarding this item 

which accepts the proposal of Collins & Company, Inc (Collins) to provide claims 

administration services for Hamilton County’s Self Insurance Program for a period of 

three years, beginning July 1, 2016, with the option to renew for three additional one 

year terms. It was noted that the company currently provides claim administration 

services for the county’s on-the-job injury and liability programs. Collins, a local 

company, was the lowest and the best bid overall.   

 

 Mr. Stoll stated Collins has provided the County with claims administration 

services since 2005, and when compared to other bidders, the projected six-year 

annual cost with Collins is the lowest. In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, 

he explained that the agreement authorizes Collins to administer the county’s self-

funded insurance claims, which includes paying medical bills, following up with doctor’s 

appointments, contacting claimants/witnesses, issuing payments, denying claims, etc. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately following 

today’s Agenda Session. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 5 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Roads Committee, announced that the 

Roads Committee would be meeting in the adjacent Conference Room immediately 

following today’s Agenda Session. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes spoke highly of the 2016 graduates and noted that Hixson 

Middle School promoted 240 eighth graders. He reported that the school will have 750 

students and thanked the commission for their support in replacing the school in 2007. 

He also congratulated Ganns Middle Valley Elementary (GMVE) on their recent Read 

20 award of $10,000. GMVE had 550 students this year and maintained 100% 

participation in the Read Twenty Minutes a Day program. This is the third year the 

school has won the award. 

 

Commissioner Haynes also referenced a recent “Letter to the Editor” regarding 

the commission not implementing a Senior Tax Freeze. He reminded everyone that 

Hamilton County property taxes have not increased since 2007. He spoke about 

reviewing tax bills with a low income senior citizen and noticed that his County property 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 

6 

taxes have gone up $5.00 since 2007, while his City of Chattanooga property taxes 

have gone up $222.00. He also reviewed a co-worker’s tax bills and her County 

property taxes have gone down $25.00, while her City of Chattanooga property taxes 

have gone up $118.00.  

He reiterated there is no crisis, Hamilton County is in good financial shape, and 

the implementation of a Senior Property Tax Freeze program is not needed. He 

reminded the public that property tax relief options are available for low-income senior 

citizens, disabled homeowners, and disabled veteran homeowners. It was noted the 

Property Tax Relief program is a state program, and available to Hamilton County 

citizens.  

Commissioner Mackey encouraged the commission to attend Tennessee County 

Services Association (TCSA) annual Post Legislative Conference taking place this 

week, May 25-27, in Gatlinburg, TN. He also congratulated GMVE on their Read 20 

award. 

Commissioner Graham congratulated 2016 graduates and thanked the Hamilton 

County School system for producing amazing men and women. He also invited 

everyone to attend the Memorial Day ceremony May 30th, 11:00 am, at the National 

Cemetery.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 7 

Commissioner Boyd thanked the Hamilton County Board of Education for 

allocating $913,600 to repair or replace stadiums across the county. He noted that 

athletic programs give students life skills that are useful throughout their life. He 

reported that the East Ridge community is ecstatic about getting their stadium replaced 

at East Ridge High School. 

 

Commissioner Fields invited everyone to attend the Town of Walden’s 2nd annual 

Memorial Day Picnic, May 30th, 11 am-4 pm at the McCoy Farm. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks congratulated North Hamilton County Elementary 

Principal Jacquie Hauth, who recently won Principal of the Year. 

 

Commissioner Smedley congratulated 2016 graduates and wished 

Commissioner Fairbanks a Happy Birthday. 

 

Commissioner Beck congratulated recent graduates and reminded the 

commission to not let politics play into their decision making concerning whether or not 

to fund the school system. He acknowledged that the commission’s decisions send a 

message to the future of young people.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 25, 2016 
 
 

 8 

Chairman Bankston congratulated 2016 graduates and stated that while 

attending a graduation celebration Saturday at the McKenzie Arena his truck was 

involved in a hit and run.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, June 1st at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  June 1, 2016 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 1st day of June, 2016, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

2 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks introduced Pastor Mike Steele, Crossroads Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Fairbanks led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

PROCLAMATION - JUNE DAIRY MONTH 

  

Mayor Coppinger asked Commissioner Fairbanks to join him at the podium to 

introduced and congratulate Chad Miller, 11th grade home school student. Mr. Miller 

was recently selected as the 2016 June Dairy Month Chairman by the Southeast United 

Dairy Industry Association representing Hamilton County 4-H Clubs. Mayor Coppinger 

presented and read into the record a Proclamation that the month of June 2016 be 

known as “June Dairy Month”.  

 

Mr. Miller thanked the Commission for their support and spoke about this year’s 

theme “Get More with Milk”. At this time a round of applause was given and Mr. Miller 

shook hands with the Mayor and Commission. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, that the 

minutes of the Recessed Meeting of May 11, 2016, the Agenda Preparation Session of 

May 11, 2016, and the Regular Meeting of May 18, 2016, be approved, treat same as 

read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion was unanimously 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

3 

 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

TRUSTEE REPORTS 

  

The Trustee’s Monthly and Excess Fee reports for April 2016 were submitted and 

made a matter of record. 

 

BOARD APPOINTMENT REPORT 

 

 Mayor Coppinger submitted for the record a report confirming the appointment of 

Christopher Mabee to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning 

Commission, for a term expiring May 31, 2020. 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 616-1 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, THE BOND 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

4 

 

OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, THE OATH OF OFFICE OF COMMISSIONER OF NORTH 

WEST UTILITY DISTRICT, AND THE OATHS OF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONERS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 616-1. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution Nos. 616-2 through 616-5 were 

heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-2 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO THE 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY REGIONAL HEALTH COUNCIL FOR A 

FOUR (4) YEAR TERM BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 1, 2020.  

  

 This resolution appoints Joe Degaetano. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

5 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 616-2. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 616-3 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF 

COUNTY COMMISSIONER JIM FIELDS, COUNTY CLERK WILLIAM "BILL" 

KNOWLES, COUNTY FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR AL KISER, COUNTY ATTORNEY 

RHEUBIN M. TAYLOR AND COUNTY AUDITOR BILL MCGRIFF, AS MEMBERS OF 

THE HAMILTON COUNTY ETHICS COMMITTEE FOR TERMS OF TWO (2) YEARS. 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 616-3.  

 

Commissioner Fields reported that he wished to abstain from voting. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

6 

 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Fields abstained from voting. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes –8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. Total Abstentions – 1. 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 616-4 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO TRI-

COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 616-4. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Graham announced that he was present. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 616-5 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

COLLINS & COMPANY, INC. TO PROVIDE CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

7 

 

FOR HAMILTON COUNTY'S SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR A PERIOD OF 

THREE (3) YEARS, BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR 

THREE (3) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERMS, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 616-5. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston abstained from voting. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. Total Abstentions – 1. 

 
 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 616-6 through 616-9 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-6 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF KLEEN-A-

MATIC FOR A ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT BEGINNING, JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH 

JUNE 30, 2017, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

8 

 

YEAR TERM, FOR LINEN SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 616-7 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BLISS 

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, INC. FOR SHREDDED RUBBER MULCH 

AMOUNTING TO $24,500.00 FOR THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-8 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PRATER 

FORD, INC. FOR ONE (1) 4X4 UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $27,252.10 FOR 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-9 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BFI WASTE 

SYSTEMS OF NORTH AMERICA FOR FOUR (4) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, 

BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020, WITH THE OPTION TO 

RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL TWO (2) YEAR TERMS FOR SOLID WASTE 

SERVICES FOR THE SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 

THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

9 

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 616-6 through 616-9, and stated that the Finance Committee 

reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 616-6 through 616-9.  

 

Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner Mackey thanked the Mayor and his staff 

for using 100% recycled rubber mulch. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 616-10 through 616-12 be 

considered together at this time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-10 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: BRADY DRIVE, ROD 

LANE AND PRISSY LANE.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-11 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: ALEXANDRA PLACE 

AND ABIGAIL LANE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 616-12 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: WHITE PINE DRIVE, 

RED DEER LANE, GRAY FOX COURT AND BLACK WALNUT DRIVE. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Roads Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 616-10 through 616-12, and stated that the Roads 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 616-10 through 616-12. The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

11 

 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

Commissioner Haynes congratulated Dupont Elementary 4th grade student Min 

Han who was recently promoted to the 6th grade. He reported that Mr. Han read over 

20,000 pages this school year and is undecided on where he will attend middle school. 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke about last week’s Tennessee County Services 

Association (TCSA) Post Legislative Conference in Gatlinburg, TN. He spoke highly of 

the TCSA’s mission to inform and improve the operation of Tennessee county 

government.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

12 

 

Commissioner Graham reported that he was honored to attend the Convention 

Center’s 30th Anniversary celebration and the National Cemetery’s Memorial Day 

celebration.  

 

Mayor Coppinger announced the last budget workshop will take place on 

Tuesday, June 7th at 9:00 am at the McDaniel Building. He added that the entire budget 

will be presented at this workshop. 

 

Chairman Bankston also spoke about attending last week’s TCSA Post 

Legislative Conference in Gatlinburg, TN.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Dan Liner, President of the Hamilton County Education Association addressed 

the commission regarding Department of Education’s proposed FY17 budget. He noted 

that the $33 million proposed budget increase was needed to fund high priority items: 

Workforce Readiness, Literacy, and Priority School Focus. He asked the commission to 

rethink their position and challenged the Mayor to present a budget that includes 

funding the items. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2016 
 

13 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, June 8, 2016 at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 





No. 616-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
REGISTER. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office the person 

named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY REGISTER” 
has taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 



 

 

 approved as taken; and 
 

3. That the person named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
REGISTER” is accepted and the oath therefor is approved as taken; and 

 
4. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 























No. 616-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO ALTON PARK DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF SEVEN THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED THIRTY 
DOLLARS ($7,630.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 
TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate seven thousand six 

hundred thirty dollars ($7,630.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Alton Park 
Development Corporation to assist with community development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That seven thousand six hundred thirty dollars ($7,630.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Alton Park Development Corporation to assist with community development. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 











No. 616-15 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO ALTON PARK DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF SEVENTEEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 
SEVENTY DOLLARS ($17,370.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 
ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston has expressed a desire to allocate seventeen thousand 

three hundred seventy dollars ($17,370.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to 
Alton Park Development Corporation to assist with community development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That seventeen thousand three hundred seventy dollars ($17,370.00) from General Fund discretionary 
monies be appropriated to Alton Park Development Corporation to assist with community 
development. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 











No. 616-16 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF UP TO TWO THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FIVE, TO PURCHASE A SECURITY SYSTEM FOR DALEWOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL. 

WHEREAS, there is a need for a security system at Dalewood Middle School; and 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck desires to use up to Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($2,500.00) from discretionary bond funds to assist with the purchase of said security 
system; and 

WHEREAS, this expenditure has been approved by the Hamilton County Board of Education; and 

WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 
of Hamilton County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the expenditure of up to Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from discretionary 
bond funds, as allotted to District Five, be approved to assist with the purchase of a security system for 
Dalewood Middle School. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-17 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF UP TO SEVEN THOUSAND FOUR 
HUNDRED THIRTY SIX DOLLARS ($7,436.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS 
ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE) TO ASSIST WITH THE PURCHASE OF LIBRARY BOOKS 
FOR HILLCREST ELEMENTARY SCHOOL. 

WHEREAS, there is a need for new library books at Hillcrest Elementary School; and 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck desires to use up to Seven Thousand Four Hundred Thirty Six 
Dollars ($7,436.00) from discretionary bond funds to assist with the purchase of said 
library books; and 

WHEREAS, this expenditure has been approved by the Hamilton County Board of Education; and 

WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 
of Hamilton County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the expenditure of up to Seven Thousand Four Hundred Thirty Six Dollars ($7,436.00) from 
discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District Five, be approved to assist with the purchase of library 
books for Hillcrest Elementary School. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-18 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SCHOOLS FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGET 
BY ADDING $70,842 TO THE FY 2015-2016 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET; 
TO AMEND THE SELF-FUNDED PROJECTS FUND BUDGET BY ADDING $490,451 
TO THE FY 2015-2016 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET; TO AMEND THE 
GENERAL PURPOSE FUND BUDGET BY ADDING $1,956,793 TO THE FY 2015-2016 
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education was awarded additional revenue of 
$70,842 from various state and federal agencies, and desires to use it for the 
designated purposes; and, 

WHEREAS,   the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a self-funded 
budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $282,847 and setting forth 
additional revenue from various non-federal agencies or donations totaling 
$207,604; and,  

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a general 
purpose operating budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $2,101,002 
and a reduction in estimated current revenue of $144,209; and, 

WHEREAS,    the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of budget 
amendment setting forth additional revenue and expenses and transfers of 
expenditures from one category to another; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the county school federal projects fund be hereby amended by adding $70,842 for the 
following items: 



Source of Funds                                                                           
Amount 
Federal Thru State          $      70,842
           
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                                                                            $     146,616 
Special Education Instruction                (2,010) 
Vocational Instruction                  44,454 
Other Student Support                   (22,535) 
Regular Instruction Support              (89,355) 
Special Education Support                      788 
Vocational Support                  (9,019) 
Transportation                                                                      3,963 
Indirect Costs                                                                                  (2,060)  
Total                                                                   $       70,842 
 
 
That the county school self-funded projects fund be hereby amended by adding $490,451 for 
the following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Investments          $         2,250 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance              282,847 
Charges for Current Services                 80,000 
Other Local Revenues                125,354 
Total                      $     490,451 
 
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                    $       76,876 
Special Education Instruction               280,243 
Other Student Support                   4,737 
Regular Instruction Support                         16,639 
Fiscal Services                    2,604 
Community Services                  82,153 
Early Childhood Education                   27,199 
Total                                                    $     490,451 
 
 
That the county general purpose school fund be hereby amended by adding $1,956,793 for the 
following items: 
 
 



 

 

 
Source of Funds 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance       $    101,024 
Restricted for Instruction Fund Balance               43,185 
Committed for Education Fund Balance                  1,043,193 
Unassigned Fund Balance               913,600 
Other Local Revenues             (144,209) 
Total            $ 1,956,793  
  
Use of Funds  
Regular Instruction          $        9,622 
Special Education Instruction              (14,251) 
Vocational Education Instruction                98,241 
Attendance                                                                                                                        3,030 
Other Student Support                         (11,809) 
Regular Instruction Support                                                                                              558,731 
Special Education Support                 11,657 
Vocational Education Support                10,000 
Director of Schools                    230,000 
Fiscal Services                                                                                                                       1,714 
Human Resources Services                (6,039) 
Operation of Plant                        (405,715) 
Maintenance of Plant               (61,200) 
Transportation              (241,300) 
Central and Other                 (2,384) 
Transfers             1,776,496  
Total            $1,956,793 
 
    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
                                                                                                 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 616-19 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF WINDROCK ENTERPRISES, INC. FOR  SMALL 
KITCHEN ITEMS AND EQUIPMENT FOR THE MIDDLE VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for unit pricing for small 
kitchen items and equipment for the Board of Education; and, 

WHEREAS, the bid from Windrock Enterprises, Inc. was considered to be the lowest and best bid 
received; and, 

WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 
the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the bid of Windrock Enterprises, Inc. for small kitchen items and equipment for the Middle Valley 
Elementary School for the Board of Education is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best 
bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 











































No. 616-20 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF SUN LIFE FINANCIAL FOR 
REINSURANCE FOR THE COUNTY’S GROUP MEDICAL PLAN AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO  SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for reinsurance for the 
County’s group medical plan; and, 

WHEREAS,   the group medical plan is under a self-funded arrangement and it is in the best interest 
of the County to purchase reinsurance for catastrophic losses under this plan; and, 

WHEREAS,  the coverage includes an annual specific deductible of $929,958 at a cost of $41.89 per 
employee per month; and 

WHEREAS, this is a one (1) year contract with the option to renew for two (2) additional contact 
terms; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposal from Sun Life Financial is considered to be best proposal received. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the proposal from Sun Life Financial for reinsurance for the group medical insurance plan is 
hereby accepted, said proposal being the best proposal received, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 







No. 616-21 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN AN 
AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 WITH THE URBAN LEAGUE OF 
GREATER CHATTANOOGA TO PROVIDE CERTAIN CONTRACT 
COMPLIANCE SERVICES FOR A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017. 

WHEREAS, under the direction of the County Mayor and through the Equal Employment 
Opportunity (EEO) office and the Development Department, the County 
performs certain functions related to developing, implanting and maintaining 
procedures in accordance with the Hamilton County EEO Policy and performs 
certain functions related to EEO and affirmation action compliance; and, 

WHEREAS, the County seeks the assistance of the Urban League of Greater Chattanooga to 
enable the County to prevent discrimination and to maximize economic 
opportunities for minority businesses and individuals by performing certain 
services for the County as set forth in the Service Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the Service Agreement will cover a period from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 
and will not exceed $50,000; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign an agreement (copy is available upon 
request) with the Urban League of Greater Chattanooga with the terms and 
conditions contained therein for an amount not to exceed $50,000 in budgeted funds 
subject to funding.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQURING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-22 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH A TERM OF JULY 1, 2016 ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 WITH 
THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE 
ABUSE AND AMENDING THE RECOVERY COURT FUND BY ADDING 
$425,000 TO THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS. 

WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse is 
awarding Hamilton County a $425,000 grant to support the Hamilton County 
Recovery Court Program from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017; and, 

WHEREAS, this grant will be used to fund program operations and provide treatment 
services for carefully selected participants in a therapeutic setting; and, 

WHEREAS, the program can reduce recidivism and help participants become productive 
members of society; and, 

WHEREAS, no match is required. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract with the Tennessee 
Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for continuation of the 
Hamilton County Recovery Court Program, and the Recovery Court Fund is amended 
by adding $425,000 to Revenues and Expenditures  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQURING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-23 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
A TERM OF JULY 1, 2016 TO JUNE 30, 2017 WITH MS. ELAINE KELLY TO SERVE AS 
COORDINATOR OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY RECOVERY COURT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, under Resolution No.706-31, Hamilton County established a Drug Court program; and, 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Purchasing Department issued a Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) for contract services for administering the Drug Court Program in September, 
2006; and, 

WHEREAS, Ms. Elaine Kelly was the only respondent but was determined to be well-qualified, on 
the basis of education and experience; and, 

WHEREAS, Ms. Kelly has successfully served as the Recovery Court Coordinator since the 
program began in 2006; and, 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to extend the contract for Ms. Kelly's services in an annualized 
amount of $92,442.00, and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement (copy available on request) with Ms. 
Elaine Kelly to coordinate and manage the Hamilton County Recovery Court Program for the period of 
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-24 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
A TERM OF JULY 1, 2016 TO JUNE 30, 2017 WITH MR. JOHN COOPER AS A CASE 
MANAGER OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY RECOVERY COURT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, under Resolution No.706-31, Hamilton County established a Drug Court program; and, 

WHEREAS, Hamilton County has received funding from the State of Tennessee for the 
continuation of the Recovery Court program; and, 

WHEREAS, the program offers a sentencing alterative for certain selected offenders; and, 

WHEREAS, Mr. John Cooper has successfully carried out his duties as a Case Manager for the 
Program; and, 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to extend the contract for Mr. John Cooper’s services in the amount 
of an annualized amount of $57,400 per year, and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement (copy available on request) with Mr. 
John Cooper to serve as a Case Manager for the Hamilton County Recovery Court Program for the 
period of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-25 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
A TERM OF JULY 1, 2016 TO JUNE 30, 2017 WITH MR. JEFF HILL AS A CASE MANAGER OF 
THE HAMILTON COUNTY RECOVERY COURT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, under Resolution No.706-31, Hamilton County established a Drug Court program; and, 

WHEREAS, Hamilton County has received funding from the State of Tennessee for the 
continuation of the Recovery Court program; and, 

WHEREAS, the program offers a sentencing alterative for certain selected offenders; and, 

WHEREAS, Mr. Jeff Hill has successfully carried out his duties as a Case Manager for the Program; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to extend the contract for Mr. Jeff Hill’s services in the amount of 
an annualized amount of $57,400 per year, and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement (copy available on request) with Mr. 
Jeff Hill to serve as a Case Manager for the Hamilton County Recovery Court Program for the period 
of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND FROM ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-26

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ACCEPT A  

$1.25 MILLION FAST TRACK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT FROM 

THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT AND TO SIGN ANY AND ALL GRANT-RELATED DOCUMENTS ON 

BEHALF OF YANFENG USA AUTOMOTIVE TRIM SYSTEMS, INC. TO PROVIDE 

VARIOUS BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS AND EQUIPMENT AT THE COMPANY’S 

NEW HAMILTON COUNTY LOCATION.

WHEREAS,  Yanfeng Group is the largest automotive interior supplier worldwide; and, 

WHEREAS, Yanfeng USA will invest in excess of $54 million in land, building and 

equipment to open its first Tennessee facility on Bonnyshire Drive in  

Hamilton County in order to manufacture various automotive interior products 

for Volkswagen Group of North America as well as other US customers; and,   

WHEREAS,  The company will bring 325 new jobs to Hamilton County at an average 

annual wage of $48,000 for production employees; and, 

WHEREAS,  The Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development has 

awarded a $1.25 million Fast Track Economic Development (ED) Fund grant 

to assist Yanfeng with various building improvements and equipment at the 

company’s new Hamilton County location; and,     

WHEREAS,  No local match is required; and, 

WHEREAS, This project will be accounted for through the Industrial Development 

 Fund; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 

SESSION ASSEMBLED: 



 

 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to accept a $1.25 million Fast Track 

Economic Development Fund grant from the Tennessee Department of 

Economic and Community Development and to sign any and all grant related 

documents on behalf of Yanfeng USA Automotive Trim Systems, Inc. to 

provide various building improvements and equipment at the company’s new 

Hamilton County 

location.    

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 

☐  

Rejected: 
 

☐ 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

☐ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Vetoed: 
 

☐ 

 

  County Mayor 

 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 616-27

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ACCEPT A  

$5.5 MILLION FAST TRACK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT FROM THE 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

AND TO SIGN ANY AND ALL GRANT-RELATED DOCUMENTS ON BEHALF OF 

GESTAMP CHATTANOOGA, LLC TO ASSIST WITH EQUIPMENT AND BUILDING 

IMPROVEMENTS TO SUPPORT THE EXPANSION OF THE COMPANY’S HAMILTON 

COUNTY OPERATIONS.  

WHEREAS, Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC, a major automotive parts supplier, is investing 

$180 million in land, building and equipment to triple its operations in support 

of Volkswagen’s new SUV as well as other automotive customers; and,  

WHEREAS, Gestamp’s expansion will add 510 new jobs to the existing 265 member 

workforce and pay an average annual wage of $35,527; and, 

WHEREAS, The Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development has 

awarded a $5.5 million Fast Track Economic Development (ED) Fund grant 

to assist Gestamp with equipment and building improvements; and,    

WHEREAS, No local match is required; and, 

WHEREAS, This project will be accounted for through the Industrial Development 

 Fund; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 

SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to accept a $5.5 million Fast Track 

Economic Development Fund Grant from the Tennessee Department of 

Economic and Community Development and to sign any and all grant related 

documents on behalf of Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC to assist with equipment 



and building improvements to support the expansion of the company’s 

Hamilton County operations.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐ 

Rejected: 
☐ 

Approved: ☐ 

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐ 

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 

Date



No. 616-28

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016–2017 AND SETTING 
THE TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2016 FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE. 

WHEREAS, the County Board of Commissioners has legal authority to adopt a budget and to levy 
taxes sufficient to fund such budget; and 

WHEREAS, in the absence of the exact official tax aggregate, which has not been completed, the 
estimated receipts from the 2016 property tax is based on a total assessed valuation of 
$9,315,411,000 with an allowance for uncollectibles of $268,984,000; and 

WHEREAS, the method for determining payments in lieu of taxes by the Electric Power Board is 
based on factors other than property value.  The Electric Power Board is excluded from 
assessed value and its payment in lieu of taxes is fixed at a rate of 53% for the General 
Purpose School Fund and 47% for the County General Fund; and 

WHEREAS, it may be necessary to issue revenue anticipation notes to fund the budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS HAMILTON COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

1. That the Budget attached to this resolution and by reference made a part of said
resolution, for the fiscal year 2016-2017 is hereby adopted.

2. That there is hereby levied on each $100.00 of assessed valuation of taxable
property in Hamilton County for 2016 a tax levy of the following rates:

General Purpose School Fund 1.3726 
County General Fund: 

General Purposes 1.3816 
District Road Purposes 0.0110 

2.7652 



3. That the taxes provided in Chapter 387 of the Tennessee Public Acts of 1971, and
any amendments thereto, known as the “Business Tax Act”, are hereby enacted,
ordained and levied on the business, business activities, vocations, or occupations
doing business or exercising a taxable privilege as provided by said Act, in
Hamilton County, Tennessee, at the rates and in the manner described by the said
Act.  The proceeds of the privilege taxes levied herein shall be apportioned to the
County General Fund in total.  It is not the intention of the Hamilton County Board
of Commissioners, in adopting this particular tax, to affect in any way the
imposition and collection of any lawful ad valorem tax imposed on personalty or
real property.

4. That the payments in lieu of taxes paid by the Electric Power Board, or any other
entity, except the Tennessee Valley Authority, is hereby fixed at a rate of 53% for
the General Purpose School Fund and 47% for the County General Fund.

5. That the County Mayor and County Clerk are hereby authorized to borrow money
on revenue anticipation notes, provided such notes are first approved by the
Director of Local Finance, to pay for the expenses herein authorized until the taxes
and other revenue for the fiscal year 2016-2017 have been collected, not exceeding
60% of the appropriations of each individual fund.  The proceeds of loans for each
individual fund shall be used only to pay the expenses and other requirements of
the fund for which the loan is made and the loan shall be paid out of revenue of the
fund for which the money is borrowed.  The notes evidencing the loans authorized
under this section shall be issued under the authority of the applicable sections of
Title 9 Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated.  Said notes shall be signed by the
County Mayor and countersigned by the County Clerk and shall mature and be
paid in full with renewal no later than June 30, 2017.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

June 15, 2016 
Date 



No. 616-29

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT CHARITABLE AND 
CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017. 

WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 Tennessee Code Annotated, authorized the County Legislative 
Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit 
charitable and civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need 
of funds to carry on their nonprofit work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS HAMILTON COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED, that the following organizations be funded as follows: 

1. That $72,293 be appropriated to the Regional Council of Governments and
SETDD to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to
provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

2. That $188,548 be appropriated to the Air Pollution Control Bureau to
promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

3. That $620,970 be appropriated to the Humane Educational Society to
promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

4. That $600,000 be appropriated to the Chamber-Community Economic
Development to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and
to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.



5. That $1,500,000 be appropriated to Baroness Erlanger Hospital to promote
the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the
ongoing programs of the organization.

6. That $100,000 be appropriated to the Enterprise Center to promote the
welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the
ongoing programs of the organization.

7. That $105,200 be appropriated to the Chattanooga Area Regional
Transportation Authority to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton
County and to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

8. That $50,000 be appropriated to the Urban League to promote the welfare
of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the ongoing
programs of the organization.

9. That $68,684 be appropriated to the Chattanooga African-American
Museum Building Maintenance to promote the welfare of the citizens of
Hamilton County and to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the
organization.

10. That $15,000 be appropriated to the Armed Forces Day Parade to promote
the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the
ongoing programs of the organization.

11. That $53,635 be appropriated to the Hamilton County Hazardous Materials
Team to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to
provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

12. That $48,965 be appropriated to the Tri-Community Volunteer Fire
Department to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and
to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

13. That $67,877 be appropriated to the Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department
to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.

14. That $31,549 be appropriated to the Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department to
promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization.



15. That $23,375 be appropriated to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Rescue 
Squad to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to 
provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
16. That $103,321 be appropriated to the Highway 58 Volunteer Fire 

Department to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and 
to provide funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
17. That $34,785 be appropriated to the Sequoyah Volunteer Fire Department 

to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
18. That $48,412 be appropriated to the Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
19. That $59,168 be appropriated to the Sale Creek Volunteer Fire Department 

to promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
20. That $20,481 be appropriated to the Hamilton County Marine Rescue to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
21. That $17,992 be appropriated to the Hamilton County Stars to promote the 

welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide funds for the 
ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
22. That $20,896 be appropriated to the Flattop Volunteer Fire Department to 

promote the welfare of the citizens of Hamilton County and to provide 
funds for the ongoing programs of the organization. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all appropriations enumerated in items 1 through 22 
above are made subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organizations to which funds are 
appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of 
Finance a copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions 
and the proposed use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be 
prepared and certified by the chief financial officer of such nonprofit 
organization in accordance with Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the 
general welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton 

County in providing these funds to the above named organizations to be 
fully in compliance  Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and 
any and  

 all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit 
charitable and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance 
with any and all of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 616-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                 (P.C. NO. 2016-061) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
TO R-1 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 8908 FULLER ROAD. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Cornerstone Construction of Chattanooga petitioned the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from  A-1 
Agricultural District to R-1 Single-Family Residential District, property located at 8908 
Fuller Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this 
petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cornerstone Construction of Chattanooga requested that the 
County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a 
newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will 
hold a public hearing on June 15, 2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as 
required by law, and such hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single-Family Residential 
District, property located at 8908 Fuller Road.  An unplatted tract of land located at 
8908 Fuller Road being the property described in Deed Book 10664, Page 635, 
ROHC.  Tax Map 171C-E-014 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 616-31 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                     P.C. NO. 2016-071) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO R-3 MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 5400, 5406 AND 5412 CHAMPION 
ROAD 
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Champion View Investments, LLC petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton 
County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to R-3 
Multi-Family Residential District, properties located at 5400, 5406 and 5412 Champion Road, 
and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Champion View Investments, LLC requested that the County 
Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on June 
15, 2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing 
having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District to R-3 Multi-Family Residential District, properties 
located at 5400, 5406 and 5412 Champion Road.  Three unplatted tracts of land located at 
5400, 5406 and 5412 Champion Road and being the properties described in Deed Book 
10587, Page 489, ROHC.  Tax Map 120F-D-001, 002 and 120K-B-006 as shown on the 
attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 616-32 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                     P.C. NO. 2016-073) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT & R-2 URBAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2333 

OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD. 
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Belle Investment Company/Becky Pelphrey petitioned the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District & R-
2 Urban Residential District to R-1 Single-Family Residential District, property located at 2333 
Ooltewah-Ringgold Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that 
this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Belle Investment Company/Becky Pelphrey requested that the County 
Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on June 
15, 2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such hearing 
having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from A-1 Agricultural District & R-2 Urban Residential District to R-1 Single-Family 
Residential District, property located at 2333 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road. An unplatted tract of 
land located at 2333 Ooltewah Ringgold Road being the property described in Deed Book 
9419, Page 964, ROHC.  Tax Map 160-028 as shown on the attached map. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 616-33 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                     (P.C. NO. 2016-065) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 
PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY AT 9125 SNOW HILL ROAD 
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Barry Kidwell, Executive Director of Mustard Tree Ministries/United 
Methodist Committee on Church Extension and Congregational Revitalization, Inc. petitioned 
the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from a Special 
Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development of property at 9125 Snow Hill 
Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be denied; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Barry Kidwell, Executive Director of Mustard Tree Ministries/United 
Methodist Committee on Church Extension and Congregational Revitalization, Inc. requested 
that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a 
newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a 
public hearing on June 15, 2016, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by 
law, and such hearing having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended 
granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development of property 
at 9125 Snow Hill Road.  An unplatted tract of land located at 9125 Snow Hill Road being the 
property described in Deed Book 7557, Page 881, ROHC.  Tax Map 086-054 as shown on 
the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 616-34 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A 
CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $677,130.00 TO PROVIDE A SCHOOL BASED DENTAL SEALANT 
PROGRAM IN HAMILTON COUNTY FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH 
JUNE 30, 2018.   
 
WHEREAS, over 90% of dental decay in children originates in the chewing surface of the 

teeth; and,  
 
WHEREAS, dental sealants have been proven to be an effective method of preventing 

dental decay in the chewing surfaces of the teeth; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department has had a successful 

school-based screening and sealant program for the past thirteen years; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health has recognized school-based screening 

and sealant programs as being an efficient means of identifying and reaching 
children at high risk of dental disease, and identified continuation funding for 
the program in Hamilton County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract for dental 
care and sealant application for the children of Hamilton County. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 

















































No. 616-35 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BAKER WASTE EQUIPMENT FOR 
CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR STATIONARY COMPACTORS, BEGINNING JUNE 
15, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 14, 2017, FOR THE RECYCLING / SUPPORT SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for up to four (4) 

commercial stationary compactors and installation for Recycling Centers in 
Hamilton County for the Recycling/Support Services Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Baker Waste Equipment amounting to $16,946.00 each was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Baker Waste Equipment for contract unit pricing for stationary compactors, 
beginning June 15, 2016 through June 14, 2017, for the Recycling / Support Services 
Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 





































No. 616-36 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TALLEY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. FOR 
ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) 
ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS, BEGINNING JUNE 15, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 14, 2017,  
FOR ASPHALT MILLING SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

pricing, with the option to renew for three (3) additional one-year terms, for asphalt 
milling services for the Highway Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid of Talley Construction Company, Inc. was the only bid received, but said bid is 

deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Talley Construction Company, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, with the option to 
renew for three (3) additional one-year terms, beginning June 15, 2016, through June 14, 2017, for 
asphalt milling services for the Highway Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and 
best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 





































No. 616-37 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUALIFICATIONS AND FEE SCHEDULES OF SANTEC CONSULTING 
SERVICES, INC., ARCADIS U.S., INC., S&ME, INC., THOMPSON ENGINEERING, INC., TERRACON 
CONSULTANTS, INC., GEOSERVICES, LLC, MARION ENVIRONMENTAL, INC., MORELAND ALTOBELLI 
ASSOCIATES, INC., AND MC SQUARED, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING JULY 
3, 2016 THROUGH JULY 2, 2017, FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, Request for Qualifications (RFQ) were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year 

contract pricing for geotechnical, environmental, facilities, construction materials engineering and 
testing services and related professional services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the qualifications of Santec Consulting Services, Inc., Arcadis U.S., Inc., S&ME, Inc., Thompson 

Engineering, Inc., Terracon Consultants, Inc., GEOServices, LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., 
Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., and MC Squared, Inc. were evaluated and approved to perform 
geoenvironmental consulting services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the fee schedules of Santec Consulting Services, Inc., Arcadis U.S., Inc., S&ME, Inc., Thompson 

Engineering, Inc., Teracon Consultants, Inc., GEOServices, LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., 
Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., and MC Squared, Inc. are accepted; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there will be sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through the operating 

budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning department from bond proceeds 
(for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the qualifications of Santec Consulting Services, Inc., Arcadis U.S., Inc., S&ME, Inc., Thompson Engineering, 
Inc., Terracon Consultants, Inc., GEOServices, LLC, Marion Environmental, Inc., Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc., 
and MC Squared, Inc., for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning July 3, 2016 through July 2, 2017, for 
geoenvironmental consulting services, are hereby approved and accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign 
any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, 
THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 











































No. 616-38 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF THOMAS CONSULTANTS, INC. 
AND CENTRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR HP (ARUBA) WIRELESS ACCESS POINTS FOR 
THE PERIOD BEGINNING JUNE 16, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 15, 2017 FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing for HP 

(Aruba) Wireless Access Points for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the unit price bids from Thomas Consultants, Inc. and Central Technologies, Inc. were 

considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the unit price bids of Thomas Consultants, Inc. and Central Technologies, Inc. for HP (Aruba) 
Wireless Access Points for the period beginning June 16, 2016 through June 15, 2017 for the 
Telecommunications Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM  
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 

































No. 616-39 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF AVAYA PARTNER ASSURANCE 
SUPPORT SERVICES (PASS), BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017, 
AMOUNTING TO $27,979.00 FROM AVAYA FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for an annual software support contract for the eleven (11) 

Nortel PBX Systems deployed throughout Hamilton County amounting to $27,979.00 
for the Telecommunications Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Avaya is the sole source for software support for this product; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of $27,979.00 is considered economically fair; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from Avaya for the purchase of Avaya Partner Assurance Support Services (PASS), 
beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, for the Telecommunications Department amounting to 
$27,979.00 is hereby accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 







No. 616-40 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR TWO (2) 
INTERNET GATEWAY ROUTERS AMOUNTING TO $34,584.24 FROM POMEROY IT 
SOLUTIONS, INC. FROM THE STATE CONTRACT FOR THE INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the quotation from Pomeroy IT Solutions, Inc. for equipment for two (2) 

Internet Gateway Routers from the State Contract/SWC-385 amounting to 
$34,584.24 for the Information Technology Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of $34,584.24 is considered economically fair; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the purchase of equipment for two (2) Internet Gateway Routers for the Information 
Technology Department amounting to $34,584.24 from Pomeroy IT Solutions, Inc. from the 
State Contract is hereby approved, being the best and most economical source, and authorizing 
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 





No. 616-41 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF A+ TECHNICAL SERVICES FOR DISPOSAL OF  
SURPLUS COMPUTER / OTHER ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACT NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS; proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a three (3) year contract with 

the option to renew for three (3) additional  years, if mutually agreeable with both contracting 
parties, to dispose of surplus electronic equipment for Hamilton County; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal required the disposal of computers and other electronics including but not limited 

to personal computers/laptops, printers, servers, fax machines, associated electronic 
components, televisions, and monitors; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposals were evaluated based on the criteria listed in the Request for Proposal; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal offered by A+ Technical Services was considered to be the best overall proposal 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, County funds will not be required to support this service. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from A+ Technical Services for disposal of surplus computer/other electronic equipment for 
Hamilton County is hereby accepted, said proposal being the best overall proposal received and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 



























































No. 616-42 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF HARDWARE/SOFTWARE AND 
INSTALLATION FOR PBX TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT UPGRADES AMOUNTING TO 
$19,249.00 FROM COMMUNICATIONS RESOURCES, INC. (CRI) FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for hardware/software and installation for upgrading nine (9) 

Nortel PBX Systems deployed throughout Hamilton County amounting to $19,249.00 
for the Telecommunications Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Communications Resources, Inc. (CRI) is the sole source for the hardware/software 

upgrade for this system; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of $19,249.00 is considered economically fair; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from Communications Resources, Inc. (CRI) for the purchase of hardware/software 
and installation for PBX telephone equipment upgrades for the Telecommunications Department 
amounting to $19,249.00 is hereby accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 616-43 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 15, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,000 WITH THE 
CITY OF CHATTANOOGA FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
COURTS COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAM WITH A TERM 
BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Courts Community Services Program contracts with 
the State to provide litter and trash collection as alternative to incarceration for 
selected offenders; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattanooga desires said services within the City 

and for special events when needed; and, 

WHEREAS, the City will provide a vehicle and collection materials; and, 

WHEREAS, the City will reimburse the County $60,000 for the program's 

 services; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract, a copy of 
which is available on request, in the amount of $60,000 with the City 
of Chattanooga for the Hamilton County Courts Community Service 
Program with a contract term beginning July 1, 2016 and ending 
June 30, 2017. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT 



 

 

AND FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 15, 2016 

  
Date 

 



1  

CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND 
COUNTY OF HAMILTON 

 
This Contract, by and between the State of Tennessee, Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘State” and County of Hamilton, hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor,” is for the 
provision of a special agreement for litter removal on State Routes, as further defined in the "SCOPE OF 
SERVICES." 

 
Contractor Edison Registration ID # 0000004208 
Contract #: CMA 1713 

 
 

A. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

A.1. The Contractor shall provide all service and deliverables as required, described, and detailed 
herein and shall meet all service and delivery timelines as specified by this Contract. 

 
A.2. Tenn. Code Ann. § 54-16-106 provides that the highway authorities of the state, counties, cities, 

and town are authorized to enter into agreements with each other respecting the improvement 
and maintenance of controlled-access facilities, defined by Tenn. Code Ann. § 54-16-101 as a 
highway or street specially designed for through traffic, and over, from or to which owners or 
occupants of abutting land or other persons have no right or easement of access from abutting 
properties. 

 
A.3. Tenn. Code Ann. § 54-5-139 provides that the State may enter into a contract with a qualified 

county to perform maintenance activities upon the rights-of-way of state highways located outside 
of municipalities and metropolitan governments; and, that the reimbursement shall be on an  
actual cost basis. 

 
A.4. The State is hereby contracting with the Contractor for the improvements and maintenance 

specified in Attachment “Exhibit A” titled “Guidelines Covering Maintenance of State Highways 
through a County,” attached and incorporated hereto as part of this Contract. 

 
 

B. TERM OF CONTRACT: 
 

This Contract shall be effective on July 1, 2016 (“Effective Date”), and extend for a period of 
twelve (12) months after the Effective Date (“Term”). The State shall have no obligation for goods 
or services provided by the Contractor prior to the Effective Date. 

 
 

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

C.1. Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of the State under this Contract  
exceed ONE HUNDRED-EIGHTY-EIGHT-THOUSAND, SEVEN-HUNDRED, AND NINETY-NINE 
DOLLARS AND FIVE CENTS ($188,799.05). The payment rates in section C.3 shall constitute 
the entire compensation due the Contractor for all service and Contractor obligations hereunder 
regardless of the difficulty, materials or equipment required. The payment rates include, but are 
not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overheads, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred 
or to be incurred by the Contractor. 

 
The Contractor is not entitled to be paid the maximum liability for any period under the Contract or 
any extensions of the Contract for work not requested by the State. The maximum liability 
represents available funds for payment to the Contractor and does not guarantee payment of any 
such funds to the Contractor under this Contract unless the State requests work and the 
Contractor performs said work. In which case, the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with 



2  

the payment rates detailed in section C.3. The State is under no obligation to request work from 
the Contractor in any specific dollar amounts or to request any work at all from the Contractor 
during any period of this Contract. 

 
C.2. Compensation Firm. The payment rates and the maximum liability of the State under this 

Contract are firm for the duration of the Contract and are not subject to escalation for any reason 
unless amended. 

 
C.3. Payment Methodology. The Contractor shall be compensated based on the payment rates herein 

for units of service authorized by the State in a total amount not to exceed the Contract Maximum 
Liability established in section C.1. 

 
a. The Contractor’s compensation shall be contingent upon the satisfactory completion of 

units, milestones, or increments of service defined in section A. 
 

b. The Contractor shall be compensated for said units, milestones, or increments of service 
based upon the following payment rates: 

 

Service Description Amount 
(per compensable increment) 

“Exhibit A” titled “Guidelines Covering Maintenance of State 
Highways through a County” 

See Exhibit A 

 
 

C.4. Travel Compensation. The Contractor shall not be compensated or reimbursed for travel, meals, 
or lodging. 

 
C.5. Invoice Requirements. The Contractor shall invoice the State only for completed increments of 

service and for the amount stipulated in section C.3, above, and present said invoices no more 
often than monthly, with all necessary supporting documentation, to: 

 
Christopher Smith 
Operations District Supervisor 
Tennessee Department of Transportation 
P.O. Box 22368 Chattanooga, 
TN 37422-2368 

 
 

a. Each invoice shall clearly and accurately detail all of the following required information 
(calculations must be extended and totaled correctly). 

 
(1) Invoice Number (assigned by the Contractor) 
(2) Invoice Date 
(3) Contract Number (assigned by the State) 
(4) Customer Account Name: Tennessee Department of Transportation 
(5) Customer Account Number (assigned by the Contractor to the above-referenced 

Customer) 
(6) Contractor Name 
(7) Contractor Tennessee Edison Registration ID Number Referenced in Preamble 

of this Contract 
(8) Contractor Contact for Invoice Questions (name, phone, and/or fax) 
(9) Contractor Remittance Address 
(10) Description of Delivered Service 
(11) Complete Itemization of Charges, which shall detail the following: 

 
i. Service or Milestone Description (including name & title as applicable) of 

each service invoiced 



3  

ii. Number of Completed Units, Increments, Hours, or Days as applicable, 
of each service invoiced 

iii. Applicable Payment Rate (as stipulated in Section C.3.) of each service 
invoiced 

iv. Amount Due by Service 
v. Total Amount Due for the invoice period 

 
b. The Contractor understands and agrees that an invoice under this Contract shall: 

 
(1) include only charges for service described in Contract Section A and in 

accordance with payment terms and conditions set forth in Contract Section C; 
(2) only be submitted for completed service and shall not include any charge for 

future work; 
(3) not include sales tax or shipping charges; and 
(4) initiate the timeframe for payment (and any discounts) only when the State is in 

receipt of the invoice, and the invoice meets the minimum requirements of this 
section C.5. 

 
C.6. Payment of Invoice. A payment by the State shall not prejudice the State's right to object to or 

question any payment, invoice, or matter in relation thereto. A payment by the State shall not be 
construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided or as approval of any 
amount invoiced. 

 
C.7. Invoice Reductions. The Contractor's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts included 

in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by the State, on the basis of 
audits conducted in accordance with the terms of this Contract, not to constitute proper 
remuneration for compensable services. 

 
C.8. Deductions. The State reserves the right to deduct from amounts, which are or shall become due 

and payable to the Contractor under this or any contract between the Contractor and the State of 
Tennessee any amounts, which are or shall become due and payable to the State of Tennessee 
by the Contractor. 

 
C.9. Prerequisite Documentation. The Contractor shall not invoice the State under this Contract until 

the State has received the following documentation properly completed. 
 

a. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State the "Authorization 
Agreement for Automatic Deposit Form" provided by the State. By doing so, the 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, once this form is received by the State, 
payments to the Contractor, under this or any other contract the Contractor has with the 
State of Tennessee, may be made by ACH; and 

 
b. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and return to the State the State-provided W-9 form. 

The taxpayer identification number on the W-9 form must be the same as the Contractor's 
Federal Employer Identification Number or Social Security Number                    
referenced in the Contractor’s Edison registration information. 

D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

D.1. Required Approvals. The State is not bound by this Contract until it is signed by the contract 
parties and approved by appropriate officials in accordance with applicable Tennessee laws and 
regulations (depending upon the specifics of this contract, said officials may include, but are not 
limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the Commissioner of Human 
Resources, and the Comptroller of the Treasury). 

 
D.2. Modification and Amendment. This Contract may be modified only by a written amendment 

signed by all parties hereto and approved by both the officials who approved the base contract 
and, depending upon the specifics of the contract as amended, any additional officials required by 
Tennessee laws and regulations (said officials may include, but are not limited to, the 



4  

Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the Commissioner of Human Resources, and the 
Comptroller of the Treasury). 

 
D.3. Termination for Convenience. The State may terminate this Contract without cause for any 

reason. Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of contract by the State. The State shall 
give the Contractor at least thirty (30) days written notice before the effective termination date.  
The Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for satisfactory, authorized service completed as 
of the termination date, but in no event shall the State be liable to the Contractor for  
compensation for any service which has not been rendered.  Upon such termination, the 
Contractor shall have no right to any actual general, special, incidental, consequential, or any 
other damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 

 
D.4. Termination for Cause. If the Contractor fails to properly perform its obligations under this 

Contract in a timely or proper manner, or if the Contractor violates any terms of this Contract, the 
State shall have the right to immediately terminate the Contract and withhold payments in excess 
of fair compensation for completed services. Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not 
be relieved of liability to the State for damages sustained by virtue of any breach of this Contract 
by the Contractor. 

 
D.5. Subcontracting. The Contractor shall not assign this Contract or enter into a subcontract for any  

of the services performed under this Contract without obtaining the prior written approval of the 
State. If such subcontracts are approved by the State, each shall contain, at a minimum, sections 
of this Contract below pertaining to "Conflicts of Interest," "Nondiscrimination," and “Records” (as 
identified by the section headings). Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors, the 
Contractor shall be the prime contractor and shall be responsible for all work performed. 

 
D.6. Conflicts of Interest. The Contractor warrants that no part of the total Contract Amount shall be 

paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of the State of Tennessee as wages, 
compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or 
consultant to the Contractor in connection with any work contemplated or performed relative to 
this Contract. 

 
D.7. Nondiscrimination. The Contractor hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person shall be 

excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
in the performance of this Contract or in the employment practices of the Contractor on the 
grounds of handicap or disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or any other 
classification protected by Federal, Tennessee State constitutional, or statutory law. The 
Contractor shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall post in 
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination. 

 
D.8. Records. The Contractor shall maintain documentation for all charges under this Contract. The 

books, records, and documents of the Contractor, insofar as they relate to work performed or 
money received under this Contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years from 
the date of the final payment and shall be subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon 
reasonable notice by the State, the Comptroller of the Treasury, or their duly appointed 
representatives. The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

 
D.9. Prevailing Wage Rates. All contracts for construction, erection, or demolition or to install goods 

or materials that involve the expenditure of any funds derived from the State require compliance 
with the prevailing wage laws as provided in Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 12-4-401 et 
seq.. 

 
D.10. Monitoring. The Contractor’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this 

Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by the State, the Comptroller of the 
Treasury, or their duly appointed representatives. 

 
D.11. Progress Reports. The Contractor shall submit brief, periodic, progress reports to the State as 

requested. 



5  

D.12. Strict Performance. Failure by any party to this Contract to insist in any one or more cases upon 
the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this Contract 
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant, condition, or 
provision. No term or condition of this Contract shall be held to be waived, modified, or deleted 
except by a written amendment signed by the parties hereto. 

 
D.13. Independent Contractor. The parties hereto, in the performance of this Contract, shall not act as 

employees, partners, joint venturers, or associates of one another. It is expressly acknowledged 
by the parties hereto that such parties are independent contracting entities and that nothing in this 
Contract shall be construed to create a employer/employee relationship or to allow either to 
exercise control or direction over the manner or method by which the other transacts its business 
affairs or provides its usual services. The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed 
or construed to be the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever. 

 
The Contractor, being a Tennessee governmental entity, is governed by the provisions of the 
Tennessee Government Tort Liability Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 29-20-101 et 
seq., for causes of action sounding in tort. Further, no contract provision requiring a Tennessee 
political entity to indemnify or hold harmless the State beyond the liability imposed by law is 
enforceable because it appropriates public money and nullifies governmental immunity without 
the authorization of the General Assembly. 

 
D.14. State Liability. The State shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Contract. 

 

D.15. Force Majeure. The obligations of the parties to this Contract are subject to prevention by causes 
beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the exercise of due care including, but  
not limited to, natural disasters, riots, wars, epidemics, or any other similar cause. 

 
D.16. State and Federal Compliance. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable State and Federal 

laws and regulations in the performance of this Contract. 
 

D.17. Governing Law. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Tennessee. The Contractor agrees that it will be subject to the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may arise under this Contract. 
The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any rights or claims against the State of 
Tennessee or its employees hereunder, and any remedies arising therefrom, shall be subject to 
and limited to those rights and remedies, if any, available under Tennessee Code Annotated, 
Sections 9-8-101 through 9-8-407. 

 
D.18. Completeness. This Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding between the 

parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and conditions of 
the parties’ agreement. This Contract supersedes any and all prior understandings, 
representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether 
written or oral. 

 
D.19. Severability. If any terms and conditions of this Contract are held to be invalid or unenforceable 

as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall 
remain in full force and effect. To this end, the terms and conditions of this Contract are declared 
severable. 

 
D.20. Headings. Section headings of this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall not be 

construed as part of this Contract. 
 

E. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

E.1. Conflicting Terms and Conditions. Should any of these special terms and conditions conflict with 
any other terms and conditions of this Contract, these special terms and conditions shall control. 



6  

E.2. Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other 
communications required or contemplated by this Contract shall be in writing and shall be made 
by certified, first class mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, by overnight courier 
service with an asset tracking system, or by EMAIL or facsimile transmission with recipient 
confirmation. Any such communications, regardless of method of transmission, shall be 
addressed to the respective party at the appropriate mailing address, facsimile number, or EMAIL 
address as set forth below or to that of such other party or address, as may be hereafter specified 
by written notice. 
The State: 

 
Christopher Smith 
Operations District Supervisor 
State of Tennessee Department of Transportation 
P.O. Box 22368 Chattanooga, 
TN 37422-2368  
Christopher.Smith@tn.gov 
Telephone # 423 510 1254 
FAX # 423 510 1155 

 
The Contractor: 

 
Greg Gregory 
Program Manager 
County of Hamilton 
6215 Dayton Blvd. 
Chattanooga, TN 37343 
GregG@hamiltontn.gov 
Telephone # 423 847 4845 
FAX # 423 847 4844 

 
All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other communications shall be considered 
effectively given upon receipt or recipient confirmation as may be required. 

 
E.3. Subject to Funds Availability. The Contract is subject to the appropriation and availability of State 

and/or Federal funds. In the event that the funds are not appropriated or are otherwise 
unavailable, the State reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon written notice to the 
Contractor. Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of Contract by the State. Upon 
receipt of the written notice, the Contractor shall cease all work associated with the Contract. 
Should such an event occur, the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all satisfactory 
and authorized services completed as of the termination date. Upon such termination, the 
Contractor shall have no right to recover from the State any actual, general, special, incidental, 
consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 

 
E.4. MUTCD. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. 54-5-108, the Contractor shall conform to and act 

in accordance with the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
as adopted by rules of the State. Particularly, the Contractor shall sign work-zones associated 
with this Contract in accordance with the aforesaid MUTCD. 

 
E. 5. Maintenance. Nothing contained in this Contract shall change the maintenance obligations 

governed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, it being the intent of this Contract not to enlarge 
the present maintenance obligations of the State. 

mailto:Christopher.Smith@tn.gov
mailto:GregG@hamiltontn.gov
mailto:GregG@hamiltontn.gov


7  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON: 

 
 

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE DATE 
 
 

 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTOR SIGNATORY (above) 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 
 
 

 

CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE DATE 
 
 
 

 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATORY (above) 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

JOHN SCHROER, COMMISSIONER DATE 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 
 
 
 
 

 

JOHN REINBOLD, GENERAL COUNSEL DATE 



 

Rev. 03-01-2016 “EXHIBIT A” Page 1 of 3 
 

GUIDELINES COVERING MAINTENANCE 
OF STATE HIGHWAYS THROUGH A COUNTY 

 
The following items where applicable are eligible for reimbursement by the State to the Contractor under the Standard Maintenance 
Agreement: 

 

Activity 
441 

Maintenance Work Type 
Litter Removal** 

Unit Of Measure 
Roadway Miles 

** Work must be inside the area eligible for reimbursements as detailed in "CITY MAINTENANCE 
ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTIONS". 

 
 

Litter Removal work shall consist of removal of litter from the entire highway rights-of-way where accessible (fence to fence where 
applicable), including shoulders and excluding the travel lanes on interstate and state routes as detailed below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 



EXHIBIT A  

Rev. 03-01-2016 Page 2 of 3 
INVENTORY OF ELIGIBLE LITTER REMOVAL FOR THE MAINTENANCE 

OF STATE HIGHWAYS THROUGH A COUNTY 
 

The following Table itemizes the eligible length of litter removal in linear miles which will be maintained by the Contractor under the terms of this contract. The State agrees to 
reimburse said Contractor in the amount actually expended for litter removal, not to exceed the number of cycles and the price per linear mile as detailed below. 

 
Calculated Maximum Reimbursement (Litter): $ 188,799.05 

           
Litter Inventory Worksheet 

Route 
Number 

Roadway 
Type 

Beginning 
Termini 
(LM) 

Ending 
Termini 
(LM) 

Segment 
Length 
(mi.) 

Litter Pass 
Miles Per 
Segment 

Segment 
Total 
Litter (mi.) 

Price per 
Litter Mile 

Number 
of Litter 
Cycles 

Contract 
Segment 
Total Litter 
(mi.) 

Contract 
Segment Total 
Litter ($) 

I0024 2A 0.000 6.640 6.640 3 19.92 $ 15.00 52 1,035.84 $ 15,537.60 
I0024 2B 6.640 10.770 4.130 2 8.26 $ 15.00 52 429.52 $ 6,442.80 
I0024 2A 10.770 11.060 0.290 3 0.87 $ 15.00 52 45.24 $ 678.60 
I0024 2B 11.060 13.900 2.840 2 5.68 $ 15.00 52 295.36 $ 4,430.40 
I0024 2A 13.900 14.710 0.810 3 2.43 $ 15.00 52 126.36 $ 1,895.40 
I0075 2B 0.000 1.000 1.000 2 2 $ 15.00 52 104.00 $ 1,560.00 
I0075 2A 1.000 1.760 0.760 3 2.28 $ 15.00 52 118.56 $ 1,778.40 
I0075 2B 1.760 12.320 10.560 2 21.12 $ 15.00 52 1,098.24 $ 16,473.60 
I0075 2A 12.320 14.490 2.170 3 6.51 $ 15.00 26 169.26 $ 2,538.90 
I0075 2B 14.490 15.630 1.140 2 2.28 $ 15.00 26 59.28 $ 889.20 
I0124 2A 0.000 0.500 0.500 3 1.5 $ 15.00 52 78.00 $ 1,170.00 
I0124 2B 0.500 1.950 1.450 2 2.9 $ 15.00 52 150.80 $ 2,262.00 
SR029 2B 0.000 2.510 2.510 2 5.02 $ 15.00 52 261.04 $ 3,915.60 
SR029 2A 2.510 11.060 8.550 3 25.65 $ 15.00 52 1,333.80 $ 20,007.00 
SR029 2A 11.060 19.590 8.530 3 25.59 $ 15.00 26 665.34 $ 9,980.10 
SR029 2B 19.590 20.720 1.130 2 2.26 $ 15.00 26 58.76 $ 881.40 
SR029 2A 20.720 25.560 4.840 3 14.52 $ 15.00 26 377.52 $ 5,662.80 
SR029 2B 25.560 30.180 4.620 2 9.24 $ 15.00 26 240.24 $ 3,603.60 
SR029 2A 30.180 30.840 0.660 3 1.98 $ 15.00 26 51.48 $ 772.20 
SR153 2A 0.000 0.660 0.660 3 1.98 $ 15.00 52 102.96 $ 1,544.40 
SR153 2B 0.660 7.590 6.930 2 13.86 $ 15.00 52 720.72 $ 10,810.80 



EXHIBIT A  

Rev. 03-01-2016 Page 3 of 3 
SR153 2A 7.590 8.010 0.420 3 1.26 $ 15.00 52 65.52 $ 982.80 
SR153 2B 8.010 11.660 3.650 2 7.3 $ 15.00 52 379.60 $ 5,694.00 
SR153 2A 11.660 12.620 0.960 3 2.88 $ 15.00 52 149.76 $ 2,246.40 
SR153 2B 12.620 12.870 0.250 2 0.5 $ 15.00 52 26.00 $ 390.00 
SR058 2A 7.012 8.550 1.538 3 4.614 $ 12.50 52 239.93 $ 2,999.10 
SR058 2B 8.550 10.590 2.040 2 4.08 $ 12.50 52 212.16 $ 2,652.00 
SR058 2A 10.590 17.240 6.650 3 19.95 $ 12.50 52 1,037.40 $ 12,967.50 
SR058 2B 17.240 26.190 8.950 2 17.9 $ 12.50 52 930.80 $ 11,635.00 
SR319 2B 8.155 21.290 13.135 2 26.27 $ 12.50 26 683.02 $ 8,537.75 
SR111 2B 0.000 3.460 3.460 2 6.92 $ 15.00 12 83.04 $ 1,245.60 
SR111 2A 3.460 7.350 3.890 3 11.67 $ 15.00 12 140.04 $ 2,100.60 
SR002 2A 21.140 21.540 0.400 3 1.2 $ 12.50 26 31.20 $ 390.00 
SR002 2B 21.540 24.420 2.880 2 5.76 $ 12.50 26 149.76 $ 1,872.00 
SR008 2B 15.781 23.170 7.389 2 14.778 $ 12.50 12 177.34 $ 2,216.70 
SR027 2B 0.000 1.967 1.967 2 3.934 $ 12.50 12 47.21 $ 590.10 
SR060 2B 0.000 7.740 7.740 2 15.48 $ 12.50 26 402.48 $ 5,031.00 
SR312 2B 0.000 16.421 16.421 2 32.842 $ 12.50 12 394.10 $ 4,926.30 
SR317 2B 5.460 15.760 10.300 2 20.6 $ 12.50 26 535.60 $ 6,695.00 
SR320 2B 5.072 7.290 2.218 2 4.436 $ 12.50 12 53.23 $ 665.40 
SR321 2B 0.000 7.090 7.090 2 14.18 $ 12.50 12 170.16 $ 2,127.00 
Total Contract Litter (mi.): 13,430.67 $ 188,799.05 

 


	6-15-16 Public Agenda - Revised
	616-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - May 25, 2016 _2355_05-25-16 Recessed
	616-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - May 25, 2016_2357_05-25-16 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	616-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - June 1, 2016 _2358_06-01-16 Regular
	616-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon June 13, 2016_2364_Order of Designation Planning Commission Todd Leamon 6 13 16
	616-13_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_2351_06-15-16
	616-13_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_2351_06-15-16A
	616-14_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Alton Park Development Corporation_2335_ComMackey Alton Park
	616-14_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Alton Park Development Corporation_2335_1885_001
	616-15_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Alton Park Development Corporation_2336_CommBankston Alton Park Corp
	616-15_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Alton Park Development Corporation_2336_1885_001
	616-16_R_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for Dalewood Middle School_2341_Comm Beck Dalewood Middle
	616-17_R_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for Hillcrest Elementary School_2342_Comm Beck HillcrestElem
	616-18_R_Christie Jordan_FY2016 Board of Education Budget Amendments_2339_School Amendment
	616-18_S_Christie Jordan_FY2016 Board of Education Budget Amendments_2339_1902_001
	616-19_R_Justin Witt_Small Kitchen Tools and Equipment for Middle Valley Elementary School_2344_RES. SMALL KITCHEN TOOLS & EQUIP. FOR MIDDLE VALLEY ELEMENTARY
	616-19_S_Justin Witt_Small Kitchen Tools and Equipment for Middle Valley Elementary School_2344_Small Kitchen Tools for Middle Valley Elementary School
	616-20_R_Alecia Poe_Stop Loss Reinsurance_2348_RES. STOP LOSS REINSURANCE
	616-20_S_Alecia Poe_Stop Loss Reinsurance_2348_Stop Loss Reinsurance
	616-21_R_Dan Saieed_Contract with Urban League of Greater Chattanooga_2349_Urban League 2016
	616-22_R_Dan Saieed_Contract for Hamilton County Recovery Court_2350_Drug Court 2016
	616-23_R_Dan Saieed_Professional Services Agreement with Elaine Kelly as Coordinator of Hamilton County Recovery Court Program_2352_E Kelly Contract 2016
	616-24_R_Dan Saieed_Professional Services Agreement with John Cooper as a Case Manager with Hamilton County Recovery Court_2354_J Cooper Contract 2016
	616-25_R_Dan Saieed_Professional Services Agreement with Jeff Hill as a Case Manager with Hamilton County Recovery Court_2359_J Hill Contract 2016
	616-26_R_Dan Saieed_Yanfeng Fast Track grant contract_2353_Yanfeng - FastTrack Economic Development Contract Resolution
	616-27_R_Dan Saieed_Gestamp Fast Track Grant_2356_Gestamp - FastTrack Economic Development Contract Resolution
	616-28_R_County Mayor_Adopting a Budget for FY 20162017_2362_BudgetAdoptResolution
	616-29_R_County Mayor_Appropriations for Non Profit Organizations for Fiscal Year 2017_2363_SuppAgcysResolution
	616-30_R_Zoning_Zoning_2329_61 Cornerstone
	616-30_S_Zoning_Zoning_2329_2016-061
	616-31_R_Zoning_Zoning_2331_071 Champion
	616-31_S_Zoning_Zoning_2331_2016-071
	616-32_R_Zoning_Zoning_2332_73 -Belle
	616-32_S_Zoning_Zoning_2332_2016-073
	616-33_R_Zoning_Zoning_2330_65- Kidwell
	616-33_S_Zoning_Zoning_2330_2016-065
	616-34_R_Becky Barnes_School Based Dental Sealant Program_2334_School Based Resolution 2018
	616-34_S_Becky Barnes_School Based Dental Sealant Program_2334_School Based Contract 2018
	616-35_R_Todd Leamon_Stationary Compactor_2338_RES. STATIONARY COMPACTORS
	616-35_S_Todd Leamon_Stationary Compactor_2338_Stationary Compactors
	616-36_R_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Milling Services_2347_RES. ASPHALT MILLING SERVICES
	616-36_S_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Milling Services_2347_Asphalt Milling Services
	616-37_R_Todd Leamon_Geoenvironmental Consulting Services_2340_RES. GEOENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTING SERVICES & FEES
	616-37_S_Todd Leamon_Geoenvironmental Consulting Services_2340_Geoenvironmental Services & Fees
	616-38_R_Albert Kiser_HP (Aruba) Wireless Access Points_2337_RES. HP (ARUBA) WIRELESS ACCESS POINTS
	616-38_S_Albert Kiser_HP (Aruba) Wireless Access Points_2337_HP (Arbua) Wireless Access Points
	616-39_R_Albert Kiser_Avaya Partner Assurance Support Services_2345_RES. AYAYA PARTNER ASSURANCE SUPPORT SERVICES (PASS)
	616-39_S_Albert Kiser_Avaya Partner Assurance Support Services_2345_Avaya Partner Assurance Support Services (PASS)
	616-40_R_Albert Kiser_Equipment for Internet Gateway Routers_2346_RES. EQUIPMENT FOR (2) INTERNET GATEWAY ROUTERS
	616-40_S_Albert Kiser_Equipment for Internet Gateway Routers_2346_Equipment for (2) Internet Gateway Routers
	616-41_R_Albert Kiser_Electronic Equipment Disposal_2360_RES. ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT DISPOSAL
	616-41_S_Albert Kiser_Electronic Equipment Disposal_2360_Electronic Equipment Disposal
	616-42_R_Albert Kiser_Hardware and software upgrades for PBX Telephone Equipment_2361_RES. HARDWARE SOFTWARE UPGRADES FOR PBX TELEPHONES
	616-43_R_Lee Norris_Courts Community Service contract with City of Chattanooga_2343_County Resolution 2016 2017 $60000
	616-43_S_Lee Norris_Courts Community Service contract with City of Chattanooga_2343_TDOT IR-SR Contract FY 2016-2017 Hamilton County Received 160418
	CONTRACT
	A. SCOPE OF SERVICES:
	B. TERM OF CONTRACT:
	C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
	D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
	E. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY OF HAMILTON:
	1
	Rev. 03-01-2016 Page 2 of 3
	Rev. 03-01-2016 Page 3 of 3




